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Complaint and Demand for Jury Trial

Richard P. Sybert, Bar No. 80731
email rsybert@gordonrees.com
Yuo-Fong C. Amato, Bar No. 261453
email bamato@gordonrees.com
GORDON & REES LLP
101 W. Broadway, Suite 1600
San Diego, California 92101
tel (619) 696-6700 / fax (619) 696-7124

Laurie A. Axford, Bar No. 163053
email laxford@nathlaw.com
THE NATH LAW GROUP
2794 Gateway Rd.
Carlsbad, California 92009
tel (858) 777-8281 / fax (858) 792-8946

Attorneys for Plaintiff
FITNESS IQ, LLC

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

FITNESS IQ, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company,

Plaintiff,

vs.

HSM IDEATV CORPORATION, a New Jersey
corporation,

Defendant.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

CASE NO. ______________________

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR
JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff FITNESS IQ, LLC ( “Plaintiff” or “Fitness IQ”) for its Complaint alleges as

follows.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is an action for willful violations of Plaintiff’s intellectual property rights,

including trademark infringement, design patent infringement, trade dress infringement, and

unfair competition, all arising out of Defendant’s production, importation, distribution, sale, and

offer for sale of its blatant counterfeits of Plaintiff’s proprietary SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells.

'11CV0160 CABBEN
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THE PARTIES

2. Plaintiff Fitness IQ is a limited liability company organized under the laws of the

State of Delaware, having its principal place of business at 2387 La Miranda Drive, Vista,

California 92081.

3. On information and belief, Defendant HSM IDEATV CORPORATION

(“Defendant”) is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of New Jersey, having its

principal place of business at 606 West 42nd Street, Suite 414, New York, New York 10036.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. Jurisdiction of these claims arise under the patent laws of the United States as set

forth in 35 U.S.C. § 271, et seq., and under the trademark laws of the United States as set forth in

the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1051 et seq.

5. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§ 1331 (federal question), 28 U.S.C. § 1332 (diversity), and 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a) (patents,

trademarks, and trade dress).

6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(1) and (2) in that a

substantial portion of the events giving rise to the claim occurred in this District, and Defendant

does business in and therefore is deemed to reside in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(c).

This Court is also a proper venue pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1400(b) for the same reasons.

7. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendant by virtue of the fact that it

has availed itself of the forum by doing business here, by virtue of its actions of infringement by

offers for sales and/or sales of infringing product to California customers, and by having

conducted the acts giving rise to these claims in the State of California and the Southern District

of California.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

8. Since at least as early as July 25, 2009, Plaintiff has designed, manufactured,

distributed, and extensively advertised its SHAKE WEIGHT® products in commerce.

Plaintiff’s proprietary SHAKE WEIGHT® free weights are special pulsating dumbbells for

shaping and toning the upper body, designed for a daily six-minute workout.
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9. Plaintiff is the owner of SHAKE WEIGHT®, United States Trademark

Registration Nos. 3,702,459 (“the ‘459 Registration”) and 3,767,175 (“the ‘175 Registration”)

for “manually-operated exercise equipment.” True and correct copies of the Trademark

Applications and Registrations Retrieval (“TARR”) database records for the ‘459 Registration

and the ‘175 Registration are attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference.

10. Plaintiff has applied for registration of the SHAKE trademark under United States

Trademark Serial No. 77/980,964 (“the ‘964 Application”) for “manually-operated exercise

equipment.” The United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) issued a Notice of

Allowance for the ‘964 Application on October 26, 2010. Plaintiff filed a Statement of Use with

the USPTO for the ‘964 Application on November 15, 2010. The USPTO issued its Notice of

Acceptance of the Statement of Use on January 19, 2011. A true and correct copy of the

Trademark Applications and Registrations Retrieval (“TARR”) database record for the ‘964

Application is attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference.

11. Plaintiff has also applied for registration of the SHAKE FITNESS trademark

under United States Trademark Serial No. 77/902,804 (“the ‘804 Application”) for “manually-

operated exercise equipment.” The USPTO issued a Notice of Allowance for the ‘804

Application on November 2, 2010. A true and correct copy of the Trademark Applications and

Registrations Retrieval (“TARR”) database record for the ‘804 Application is attached hereto as

Exhibit C and incorporated by reference.

12. On August 5, 2009, Plaintiff filed a design patent application with the USPTO for

its SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells. On December 7, 2010, the USPTO issued United States

Patent No. D628,660 (“the ‘660 Patent”) for “exercise device,” the SHAKE WEIGHT®

dumbbell. The ‘660 Patent is valid and enforceable. A true and correct copy of the ‘660 Patent

is attached hereto as Exhibit D and incorporated by reference.

13. Since at least as early as July 25, 2009, Plaintiff has extensively advertised its

SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells, especially in the form of commercials and infomercials seen on

network television, cable television, and the Internet. Since its inception, Plaintiff has spent

more than $6.4 million to advertise SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells for women in direct response
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television media, and more than $2.7 million to advertise SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells for

men in direct response television media. Tens of thousands of 60-second and 120-second

SHAKE WEIGHT® television spots have aired. The SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells and

commercials have been so popular that they have been referenced extensively in the media and

popular culture.

14. On August 3, 2009, hostess Whoopi Goldberg introduced a clip from the SHAKE

WEIGHT® dumbbells for women infomercial on the show “The View.”

15. On August 7, 2009, host Jimmy Kimmel incorporated a clip from the SHAKE

WEIGHT® dumbbells for women infomercial in his monologue on the show “Jimmy Kimmel

Live.”

16. On September 15, 2009, host Ellen DeGeneres aired a clip from the SHAKE

WEIGHT® dumbbells for women infomercial on her show “Ellen.” The dumbbells were so well

received that she aired that clip again the next day, on September 16, 2009, where Ms.

DeGeneres demonstrated her own use of the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbell as well as a whole

crew using the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells. Since September 2009, the SHAKE WEIGHT®

has appeared on the Ellen show more than six times. Ms. DeGeneres has continually promoted

the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells, having given the product as a gift to celebrities Queen

Latifah and Jason Bateman while they were on her show.

17. On October 27, 2009, a clip from the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells for men

infomercial was featured in the “Moment of Zen” segment on “The Daily Show” with Jon

Stewart.

18. On April 17, 2010, the comedians on the show “Saturday Night Live” parodied

the SHAKE WEIGHT® commercial.

19. On September 21, 2010, host Jimmy Fallon also aired the SHAKE WEIGHT®

dumbbells for men infomercial on his show, “Late Night with Jimmy Fallon.” He discussed the

SHAKE WEIGHT® product with his guest, actress Emma Stone.

20. On September 21, 2010, ESPN featured the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells for

men product in its own (ESPN’s) commercial during its “Sunday NFL Countdown with Adam &
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Mort” show. In ESPN’s commercial, NFL player Dwight Freeney was shown to have a SHAKE

WEIGHT® for men in his fictional garage.

21. In addition to the television shows documented above, the SHAKE WEIGHT®

dumbbells have also been featured in HBO’s “Hard Knocks,” Comedy Central’s “South Park,”

CBS’s “Two and a Half Men,” and the David Letterman show.

22. Since July 2009, sales for the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells have exceeded $60

million. Through these sales and extensive and widespread publicity as exemplified above,

Plaintiff has developed substantial secondary meaning in the design of its SHAKE WEIGHT®

dumbbells.

23. On or around December 2010, Plaintiff became aware that Defendant was selling

knock-offs of the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells under the mark “Fitness Shake.” On or around

December 15, 2010, Plaintiff sent a cease and desist letter to Defendant, informing Defendant of

its intellectual property rights in the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells. A true and correct copy of

this letter is attached as Exhibit E and incorporated by reference.

24. On or around December 17, 2010, Defendant responded in writing by email to

Plaintiff’s counsel, claiming that Defendant has “ceased all activities relating to the sale, offering

for sale or distribution” of the “Fitness Shake” dumbbells. A true and correct copy of this email

is attached as Exhibit F and incorporated by reference.

25. Despite Defendant’s representation that it would no longer sell, offer for sale, or

distribute the “Fitness Shake” dumbbells, Plaintiff has been informed and believes that

Defendant has nevertheless continued to do so. On or around the beginning of December 2010,

the Midwest home improvement store chain Menards indicated that it intended to place an order

of 200,000 units of SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells from Plaintiff through Plaintiff’s agent.

However, on or around December 14, 2010, the Menards buyer informed Plaintiff’s agent that

unless Plaintiff lowered its price for SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells, Menards would buy the

cheaper “Fitness Shake” dumbbells from Defendant. On or around January 19, 2011, Plaintiff

discovered that Menards will not proceed with the prospective order of SHAKE WEIGHT®

dumbbells, and has instead ordered the cheaper “Fitness Shake” dumbbells from Defendant. On
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information and belief, some time in the beginning of January, Menards has placed an order with

Defendant for 180,000 units of the “Fitness Shake” dumbbell (an estimated retail value of

$1,800,000) with the target delivery date some time during the first week of March, 2011.

26. The design and trade dress of the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells for women

include without limitation a contoured handle, stylized indentations in the handle, two flexible

boots which are located between the handle and a recessed groove of the end weights, two

cylindrical end weights, and reflective surfaces on the end weights. The end weights feature an

inner circle on their ends and an outer ring surface.

27. The “Fitness Shake” dumbbells are clear knock-offs of the SHAKE WEIGHT®

dumbbells. The “Fitness Shake” dumbbells are approximately the same size and weight of the

SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells. The “Fitness Shake” dumbbell also consists of a contoured

handle, stylized indentations in the handle, two flexible boots which are located between the

handle and a recessed groove of the end weights, two cylindrical end weights that feature an

inner circle on their ends and an outer ring surface, and reflective surfaces on the end weights.

The only perceivable differences are that the “Fitness Shake” dumbbell contains indentations in

the handle that run parallel, rather than perpendicular, to the end weights; and that the “Fitness

Shake” dumbbell is of a cheaper, inferior quality.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Infringement of United States Design Patent No. D628,660

28. Plaintiff incorporates and re-alleges herein as if set forth at length the allegations

of the preceding paragraphs above.

29. Plaintiff is the owner of United States Patent No. D628,660 (“the ‘660 Patent”)

for “exercise device,” the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbell. The ‘660 Patent is valid and

enforceable.

30. Defendant has designed, manufactured, distributed, and/or imported its “Fitness

Shake” dumbbells. On information and belief, the overwhelming similarities between the

“Fitness Shake” and Plaintiff’s proprietary SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells were meant to
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capitalize on the popularity of Plaintiff’s proprietary SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells and its

unique and distinctive design.

31. Defendant’s “Fitness Shake” dumbbells infringe upon the ‘660 Patent, as an

ordinary observer would be deceived into believing that the “Fitness Shake” dumbbells are the

same as the patented SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbell design. The overall appearance of the

“Fitness Shake” dumbbells are deceptively similar to the overall appearance of Plaintiff’s

proprietary SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells.

32. Defendant’s infringing acts constitute a violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a).

33. As a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has been injured in an amount

not yet fully determined, but believed to be in excess of $75,000, exclusive of costs and interests.

In addition, as a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to

suffer irreparable harm, and Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law with respect to this injury.

Unless Defendant’s infringing acts are enjoined by this Court, Plaintiff will continue to suffer a

risk of irreparable harm.

34. On information and belief, Defendant’s infringing acts have been knowing,

intentional, wanton, and willful, entitling Plaintiff to treble damages, profits, attorneys fees and

costs pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284 in this Court’s discretion.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Trade Dress Infringement Under 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)

35. Plaintiff incorporates and re-alleges herein as if set forth at length the allegations

of the preceding paragraphs above.

36. Plaintiff’s SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbell and the product packaging

accompanying the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbell constitute protectable trade dress under the

Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a). The trade dress of the SHAKE WEIGHT® for women

dumbbell includes without limitation a contoured handle, stylized indentations in the handle, two

flexible boots which are located between the handle and a recessed groove of the end weights,

and two cylindrical end weights. The end weights feature an inner circle on their ends and an

outer ring surface.
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37. The trade dress of Plaintiff’s SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbell is not functional.

38. Defendant’s acts of designing or having designed, manufacturing or having

manufactured, selling, distributing, and/or importing the “Fitness Shake” products in interstate

commerce, without Plaintiff’s consent, constitutes infringement of Plaintiff’s trade dress, and has

caused and continues to cause a likelihood of confusion, mistake, and deception as to source,

sponsorship, affiliation, and/or connection in the minds of the public, in violation of the Lanham

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

39. As a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has been injured in an amount

not yet fully determined, but believed to be in excess of $75,000, exclusive of costs and interests.

In addition, as a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to

suffer irreparable harm, and Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law with respect to this injury.

Unless Defendant’s infringing acts are enjoined by this Court, Plaintiff will continue to suffer a

risk of irreparable harm.

40. On information and belief, Defendant’s infringing acts have been knowing,

intentional, wanton, and willful, entitling Plaintiff to treble damages, profits, attorneys fees and

costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117 in this Court’s discretion.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Trademark Infringement Under 15 U.S.C. § 1114(a)

41. Plaintiff incorporates and re-alleges herein as if set forth at length the allegations

of the preceding paragraphs above.

42. Plaintiff is the owner of the ‘459 Registration and the ‘175 Registration for

SHAKE WEIGHT® in association with “manually-operated exercise equipment,” the SHAKE

WEIGHT® dumbbells.

43. Defendant’s acts of designing or having designed, manufacturing or having

manufactured, selling, distributing, and/or importing the “Fitness Shake” dumbbells in interstate

commerce, without Plaintiff’s consent, constitutes infringement of Plaintiff’s registered

trademarks, and has caused and continues to cause a likelihood of confusion, mistake, and
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deception as to source, sponsorship, affiliation, and/or connection in the minds of the public, in

violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114(a).

44. As a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has been injured in an amount

not yet fully determined, but believed to be in excess of $75,000, exclusive of costs and interests.

In addition, as a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to

suffer irreparable harm, and Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law with respect to this injury.

Unless Defendant’s infringing acts are enjoined by this Court, Plaintiff will continue to suffer a

risk of irreparable harm.

45. On information and belief, Defendant’s infringing acts have been knowing,

intentional, wanton, and willful, entitling Plaintiff to treble damages, profits, attorneys fees and

costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117 in this Court’s discretion.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Trademark Infringement and False Designation of Origin Under 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)

46. Plaintiff incorporates and re-alleges herein as if set forth at length the allegations

of the preceding paragraphs above.

47. Plaintiff is the owner of the valid trademark SHAKE™ in association with

“manually-operated exercise equipment” through priority of use in commerce and/or through

acquisition of secondary meaning.

48. Defendant’s acts of designing or having designed, manufacturing or having

manufactured, selling, distributing, and/or importing the “Fitness Shake” dumbbells in interstate

commerce, without Plaintiff’s consent, constitutes infringement of Plaintiff’s SHAKE™

trademark, and has caused and continues to cause a likelihood of confusion, mistake, and

deception as to source, sponsorship, affiliation, and/or connection in the minds of the public, in

violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

49. As a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has been injured in an amount

not yet fully determined, but believed to be in excess of $75,000, exclusive of costs and interests.

In addition, as a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to

suffer irreparable harm, and Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law with respect to this injury.
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Unless Defendant’s infringing acts are enjoined by this Court, Plaintiff will continue to suffer a

risk of irreparable harm.

50. On information and belief, Defendant’s infringing acts have been knowing,

intentional, wanton, and willful, entitling Plaintiff to treble damages, profits, attorneys fees and

costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117 in this Court’s discretion.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Trademark Infringement Under Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 14200 et seq.

51. Plaintiff incorporates and re-alleges herein as if set forth at length the allegations

of the preceding paragraphs above.

52. Plaintiff is the owner of the SHAKE WEIGHT, SHAKE WEIGHT + design, and

SHAKE trademarks for “manually-operated exercise equipment.” The SHAKE WEIGHT,

SHAKE WEIGHT + design, and SHAKE trademarks constitute “Marks” as defined by Cal. Bus.

& Prof. Code § 14202.

53. Defendant’s acts of designing or having designed, manufacturing or having

manufactured, selling, distributing, and/or importing the “Fitness Shake” dumbbells in interstate

commerce, without Plaintiff’s consent, constitutes infringement of Plaintiff’s Marks, and has

caused and continues to cause a likelihood of confusion, mistake, and deception as to source,

sponsorship, affiliation, and/or connection in the minds of the public, in violation of Cal. Bus. &

Prof. Code § 14200 et seq.

54. As a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has been injured in an amount

not yet fully determined, but believed to be in excess of $75,000, exclusive of costs and interests.

In addition, as a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to

suffer irreparable harm, and Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law with respect to this injury.

Unless Defendant’s infringing acts are enjoined by this Court, Plaintiff will continue to suffer a

risk of irreparable harm.

55. On information and belief, Defendant’s infringing acts have been knowing,

intentional, wanton, and willful, entitling Plaintiff to treble damages, profits, attorneys fees and
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costs pursuant to Cal. Civ. Code § 3294 and Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 14250(a) in this Court’s

discretion.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Unfair Competition Under Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq.

56. Plaintiff incorporates and re-alleges herein as if set forth at length the allegations

of the preceding paragraphs above.

57. California Business & Professions Code § 17200 provides that unfair competition

means and includes “any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act or practice and unfair,

deceptive, untrue, or misleading advertising.”

58. By and through Defendant’s conduct, including the conduct detailed above,

Defendant has engaged in activities that constitute unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent business

practices prohibited by Business & Professions Code § 17200 et seq.

59. Defendant’s acts of intentional and willful trademark, trade dress, and design

patent infringement as alleged above constitute unfair competition actionable under the laws of

the State of California as unlawful business acts or practices in that, inter alia, said acts violate

the United States patent laws, 35 U.S.C. § 271 et seq. and the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C.

§§ 1114(a), 1125(a), and Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 14200 et seq.

60. Defendant’s acts of intentional and willful trademark, trade dress, and design

patent infringement as alleged above constitute unfair competition actionable under the laws of

the State of California as unfair business acts or practices in that, inter alia, said acts of

producing knock-offs of Plaintiff’s proprietary SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells in order to

appropriate the substantial value of Plaintiff’s investment and effort in design and marketing

without paying for it and then underselling these products in direct competition with Plaintiffs

SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells are immoral, unethical, oppressive, and unscrupulous.

61. Defendant’s acts of intentional and willful trademark, trade dress, and design

patent infringement as alleged above constitute unfair competition actionable under the laws of

the State of California as fraudulent business acts of practices in that, inter alia, said acts are

likely to confuse the public as to the origin of the infringing products.
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62. Defendant’s acts of intentional and willful trademark, trade dress, and design

patent infringement as alleged above constitute unfair competition actionable under the laws of

the State of California as deceptive and false advertising in that, inter alia, said acts are likely to

cause confusion, mistake, and deception.

63. The above described acts and omissions are unlawful, unfair, fraudulent,

deceptive, misleading, and untrue, and constitute a violation of Business & Professions Code

§ 17200 et seq. Plaintiff reserves the right to identify additional violations by Defendant as may

be established through discovery.

64. As a result of Defendant’s said acts of unfair competition, Plaintiff has suffered

and will continue to suffer irreparable harm. Unless the acts of unfair competition are enjoined

by this Court, Plaintiff will continue to suffer irreparable harm.

65. As a direct and legal result of Defendant’s unlawful, unfair, and fraudulent

conduct described above, Defendant has been and will continue to be unjustly enriched with ill-

gotten gains, to which Plaintiff has the right to recover.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

California Common Law Unfair Competition

66. Plaintiff incorporates and re-alleges herein as if set forth at length the allegations

of the preceding paragraphs above.

67. Plaintiff is the owner of the valid marks SHAKE WEIGHT® and SHAKE™ in

association with “manually-operated exercise equipment,” namely, the SHAKE WEIGHT®

dumbbells. The design of the SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells is also protected by the ‘660

Patent and common law trade dress.

68. Defendant’s “Fitness Shake” dumbbells are an imitation of Plaintiff’s proprietary

SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells.

69. On information and belief, Defendant introduced the “Fitness Shake” dumbbells

into commerce with the purpose of deceiving the unwary public into buying the imitation under

the impression that it is purchasing Plaintiff’s SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells.
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70. Plaintiff’s SHAKE WEIGHT® dumbbells and Defendant’s “Fitness Shake”

dumbbells are in direct competition.

71. As a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has been injured in an amount

not yet fully determined, but believed to be in excess of $75,000, exclusive of costs and interests.

In addition, as a result of Defendant’s infringing acts, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to

suffer irreparable harm, and Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law with respect to this injury.

Unless Defendant’s infringing acts are enjoined by this Court, Plaintiff will continue to suffer a

risk of irreparable harm.

72. On information and belief, Defendant has acted in conscious disregard of

Plaintiff’s rights, entitling Plaintiff to punitive damages in this Court’s discretion.

RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court grant relief as follows:

a. Judgment in favor of Plaintiff on all claims herein;

b. A temporary restraining order, and a preliminary and permanent injunction

preventing Defendant and those additional parties specified in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure

Rule 65(d) from continued infringement of Plaintiff’s intellectual property rights, including

trademarks, common law trade dress, and design patent, United States Patent No. D628,660 (“the

‘660 Patent”), and any and continued unfair competition;

c. An accounting of profits and damages resulting from Defendant’s trade dress and

design patent infringement and unfair competition, and trebling of such damages for the

knowing, intentional, willful, and wanton nature of Defendant’s conduct;

d. On the trademark and trade dress infringement claims, an award to Plaintiff of (i)

an amount equal to the actual damages suffered by Plaintiff as a result of the infringement of its

proprietary trade dress; (ii) an amount equal to the profits earned by Defendant as a result of its

infringing creation, design, distribution, packaging, and sales, or as a result of Defendant’s

purchase and re-sale of their infringing products; (iii) an amount equal to three times the

monetary award assessed in view of Defendant’s willful and wanton infringement under 15

U.S.C. § 1117; (iv) prejudgment and post-judgment interest; (v) an amount equal to Plaintiff’s
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reasonable attorneys fees, on the basis that this action is an “exceptional” case under 15 U.S.C.

§ 1117;

e. On the design patent infringement claim, an award to Plaintiff of (i) an amount

equal to the actual damages suffered by Plaintiff as a result of the infringement of its design

patent, but no less than a reasonably royalty for the use made by Defendant of the infringing

product; (ii) an amount equal to the profits earned by Defendant as a result of its infringing

creation, design, distribution, packaging, and sales, or as a result of Defendant’s purchase and re-

sale of their infringing products; (iii) an amount equal to three times the monetary award

assessed in view of Defendant’s willful and wanton infringement under 35 U.S.C. § 384; (iv)

prejudgment and post-judgment interest; (v) an amount equal to Plaintiff’s reasonable attorneys

fees, on the basis that this action is an “exceptional” case under 35 U.S.C. § 385;

f. An award to Plaintiff any additional remedies from infringement of the ‘660

Patent by Defendant as provided in 35 U.S.C. § 289;

g. On the California trademark infringement claim, (i) an amount equal to up to

three times the profits earned by Defendant as a result of its infringing creation, design,

distribution, packaging, and sales, or as a result of Defendant’s purchase and re-sale of their

infringing products, (ii) an amount equal to up to three times the damages suffered by Plaintiff as

a result of Defendant’s infringing creation, design, distribution, packaging, and sales, or as a

result of Defendant’s purchase and re-sale of their infringing products, and (iii) destruction

and/or recall of all materials bearing the infringing mark from the market;

h. On the common law unfair competition claim, compensatory and punitive

damages;

i. Disgorgement of all profits and restitution made in connection or associated with

the sale of the infringing products under California Business & Professions Code § 17200 et seq.;

j. An order for the seizure and forfeiture of all goods infringing upon Plaintiff’s

trademarks, the ‘660 Patent, and SHAKE WEIGHT® trade dress and trademark upon delivery

into the United States pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337;

k. An award of punitive damages for intentional and willful acts;
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l. An award of interest, attorneys fees and costs; and

m. Such other and further relief as the Court deems proper.

Dated: January 25, 2011 Respectfully submitted,

GORDON & REES LLP

by /s/Richard P. Sybert
Richard P. Sybert
Yuo-Fong C. Amato
Attorneys for Plaintiff
FITNESS IQ, LLC
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury for all claims triable by a jury.

Dated: January 25, 2011 Respectfully submitted,

GORDON & REES LLP

by /s/Richard P. Sybert
Richard P. Sybert
Yuo-Fong C. Amato
Attorneys for Plaintiff
FITNESS IQ, LLC

VRHM/1065886/8950154v.1

Case 3:11-cv-00160-H   -WMC   Document 1    Filed 01/25/11   Page 16 of 18



'11CV0160 CABBEN

Case 3:11-cv-00160-H   -WMC   Document 1    Filed 01/25/11   Page 17 of 18



Case 3:11-cv-00160-H   -WMC   Document 1    Filed 01/25/11   Page 18 of 18


